
Please ask for  Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 

Committee - LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTLOCAL STRATEGIC PARTLOCAL STRATEGIC PARTLOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP NERSHIP NERSHIP NERSHIP 

BOARDBOARDBOARDBOARD 

Date & Time - Thursday, 21st July, 2011 at 2.00 pm 

Venue - The Anglia Room, Conference Suite, 
Elizabeth House, Dereham NR19 1EE 

 
 

REPRESENTATIVE ORGANISATION 
Councillor Adrian Stasiak (Chairman) Breckland Council 
David Ovenden (Vice-Chairman) Dereham Area Partnership 
Maureen Carson NHS Norfolk 
Ian Clarke Eastern Daily Press 
Jonathan Clemo Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Tony Dickens Iceni Partnership, Swaffham 
Chief Inspector Paul Durham Norfolk Constabulary 
Jan Godfrey Wayland Partnership 
Supt Stuart Gunn Norfolk Constabulary 
Andrew Heginbotham Norfolk Fire Service 
Brian Horner Voluntary Norfolk 
Valerie Jenkins Norfolk Police Authority 
Shirley Matthews Norfolk Association of Local Councils 
Jo Richardson Norfolk County Council 
Councillor John Rogers Norfolk County Council 
Neil Stott Keystone Development Trust 
Caroline Williams Norfolk Chamber of Commerce 

 
Member Services     

Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Thursday, 14 July 2011  
 

Public Document Pack



LSP Board 
21 July 2011 

 
 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 7 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 May 2011.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any items of urgent 
business.  
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have in 
any of the following items on the agenda.  
 

 

5. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS   

 To agree items for inclusion on the next or future agenda.  
 

 

6. PERFORMANCE REPORTING   

a) Pride in Breckland Project 8 - 10  

 Report by Rob Leigh, Community Development Manager.  
 

 

b) Thetford Healthy Town 11 - 12  

 Report by Holly Gilbert and Carol Doherty, Thetford Healthy Town.  
 

 

c) Migration Impact Funding 13 - 15  

 Report by Adam Jackson, Service Connector Manager.  
 

 

7. CONSTITUTION - FUNDING ALLOCATION   

 To discuss current funding allocation arrangements.  
 

 

8. THETFORD WORKS!  16 - 29 

 To receive a report / presentation from Keystone Development Trust.  
 

 

9. PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING  30 - 33 

 To receive a report from Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer.  
 

 

10. BUDGET   

 To receive an update on Partnership finances.  
 

 

11. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS   

 To agree items for inclusion on the next or future agendas.  
 

 



LSP Board 
21 July 2011 

 

12. NEXT MEETING   

 To note that the next meeting of the LSP Board will be held on Thursday 22 
September 2011 at 2.00 pm in the Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Breckland 
Council.  
 

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
 

Held on Thursday, 19 May 2011 at 2.00 pm in 
Anglia Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham NR19 1EE 

 
PRESENT  
Mrs J. Godfrey Wayland Partnership 
Mrs V. Jenkins Norfolk Police Authority 
Mr R Martin (Substitute Member) (In place of J 
Clemo) 

Norfolk Rural Community Council 

Insp Peacock (Substitute Member) (In place of 
Chief Insp Durham) 

Norfolk Constabulary 

Ms S Presland (Substitute Member) (In place 
of Mrs S. Matthews) 

Norfolk Association of Local Councils 

Ms J Richardson Norfolk County Council 
Ms L. Rogers (Substitute Member) (In place of 
Mr B. Horner) 

Voluntary Norfolk 

Mr J.D. Rogers Norfolk County Council 
Mr A.C. Stasiak Breckland Council 
Mr N. Stott Keystone Development Trust 

 
 

Also Present  
Carol Doherty Thetford Healthy Town 
Holly Gilbert Thetford Healthy Town 
Peter Haystead Norfolk Police Authority 

 
In Attendance  
Sam Dawson Arts Development Officer 
Mark Fretwell LSP Officer 
Robert Leigh Community Development Manager 
Helen McAleer Senior Committee Officer 
Tony Trotman Thetford Healthy Town Manager 
Richard Wills Breckland Pride Coordinator 

 
 
 Action By 

 
  
12/11 CHAIRMAN (AGENDA ITEM 1)   
  
 RESOLVED that Mr A Stasiak be elected as Chairman for the 

ensuing year. 
 

  
13/11 VICE-CHAIRMAN (AGENDA ITEM 2)   
  
 RESOLVED that Mr D Ovenden be elected as Vice-Chairman for 

the ensuing year. 
 

  
14/11 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 3)   
  
 Subject to an amendment, noting that Mr R Martin had been in attendance, 

the Minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2011 were confirmed as a 
correct record. 

 

  

Agenda Item 1

1



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 May 2011 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 
15/11 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 4)   
  
 Apologies for absence were received from Mr I Clarke, Mr J Clemo, Chief 

Inspector P Durham, Mr A Heginbotham, Mr B Horner, Mrs S Matthews and 
Mr M Stokes. 

 

  
16/11 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 5)   
  
 None.  
  
17/11 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (AGENDA ITEM 6)   
  
 None.  
  
18/11 PERFORMANCE REPORTING (AGENDA ITEM 7)   
  

 (a) Pride in Breckland Project    

   
 Richard Wills, Pride Co-ordinator, presented the report and gave 

members an update on the project. 
 
He pointed out an amendment to the report.  On pages 12 and 13 Watton 
War Memorial should read Carbrooke War Memorial. 
 
The biggest completed project was the Pride in Breckland awards which 
had been held at RAF Marham on 19 March 2011 with 200 guests.  Other 
projects were on-going like the Spring Detectives booklets and future 
projects were noted at Appendix B to the report. 
 
The Vice-Chairman said that on behalf of the Partnership he wanted to 
thank Richard for all the good work at the Pride in Breckland awards and 
the Chairman agreed that it had been a remarkable occasion. 
 
Mr Rogers told Partners that the Chairman of Norfolk County Council had 
said it had been the best organised and presented event of its kind he 
had attended. 
 
The Community Development Manager advised Members that Richard 
Wills would be taking up a secondment in the HR department which was 
sad news for the Pride in Breckland Project.  He wanted to thank Richard 
for all the work he had done and to wish him the best of luck on his 
secondment. 

 

   

 (b) Arts Project, Thetford    

   
 In the absence of Deborah Smith the Curator, the Council’s Arts 

Development Officer, Sam Dawson, presented the report. 
 
She gave an overview of the projects which were now completed.  The 
aim had been to capture Thetford town and people at a time of change.  
Two projects had emerged, the 24 hour digital portrait and the Thetford 
travelling menagerie. 
 
Members were urged to visit the website www.thetford24.org.uk  to look 
at the pictures, images and poems gathered from many residents of 

 

2



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 May 2011 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

 
Thetford for the 24 hour digital portrait. 
 
The travelling menagerie had used stories and images from Thetford 
history and folklore to inspire people to talk about the complex issues and 
changes to Thetford influenced by the military airbase, the London 
overspill and the migrant communities. 
 
The project had had a very broad brief and had generated a lot of local 
and national press coverage. 

   

 (c) Thetford Healthy Town    

   
 Tony Trotman, Thetford Healthy Town Manager presented the last reports 

from the project as funding had ended in March 2011.  He introduced 
Carol Doherty and Holly Gilbert, who had done a lot of work for the 
project.  They joined him in presenting information and a short film. 
 
A two tier evaluation of the project was being carried out at local and 
national level.  The local report was in draft form and would be circulated 
to all Partners when finalised. 
 
Key points were the value of co-operation and working together for a 
common goal.  They had used a cohesive approach with clear pathways, 
making it transparent, straightforward and easy.  Different projects had 
worked closely together and there had been referrals from one to another, 
making each more successful. 
 
Thetford Healthy Town was now a recognised brand.  Participation figures 
and costs were included in the report. 
 
Carol Doherty presented some case studies showing the success of 
individuals participating in the projects in losing weight, increasing their 
confidence and improving their quality of life. 
 
More work would be done to identify the numbers of individuals that had 
benefitted from the project to provide evidence to support a bid for future 
permanent funding.   
 
The Manager advised that NHS Norfolk had agreed 50% of the funding to 
extend the project for a further 12 months.  Smoking, alcohol and teenage 
pregnancy would be looked at and it was hoped that the project could 
move out into rural areas. 
 
Holly Gilbert explained that their vision was to embed health into all areas 
of lifestyle.  They would be focussing on Attleborough, Dereham and 
Watton where Practice data showed a lot of child obesity. 
 
There were a large number of projects available on the menu but it was 
important to find out what support each community wanted. 
 
NHS Norfolk was keen that the project should be taken out to a wider 
audience, but the Manager wanted to stick to Breckland first, before going 
county-wide. 
 
£60,000 of match funding was required to launch a range of projects.  He 

 

3



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 May 2011 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

 
was confident that they could make a difference and provide health 
benefits to other areas.   
 
The Partnership (LSP) Officer asked if funding was sought from the LSP 
and the Manager said that any support would be welcome to help them 
achieve the £60,000 required.  Funding had been secured for Thetford 
and Attleborough but was still needed for Dereham and Watton. 
 
It was suggested that the LSP could offer £10-15,000 in the first place 
and if there was a shortfall the Manager could ask for more at the July 
meeting. 
 
Neil Stott acknowledged that the project had been a great success but 
was concerned that due process was not being followed in the distribution 
of LSP money. 
 
The Partnership (LSP) Officer pointed out that the same process had 
occurred with Project Rainbow which had made a presentation to the 
Board and then been offered funding.  However Neill Stott said that it was 
a question of fairness and transparency and gave the example of match 
funding which had clear processes in place. 
 
The Partnership (LSP) Officer explained that match funding was a lengthy 
process that was administered as part of Breckland Council’s financial 
systems, and this matter was time critical.  He went on to say that the 
Board had been linked with the Healthy Town project since its start.  The 
Board was open to all to apply for funding and no-one had been turned 
away, all were welcome to put bids forward. 
 
Members debated the issues and it was agreed that the process needed 
to be clarified and written down so that it was available for all to see.   
 
The Manager suggested that, to start the project moving forward, if the 
Board could provide some form of commitment it would assist with the bid 
for match funding. 
 
The Community Development Manager, speaking as an Officer not a 
Board Member, said that the Thetford Healthy Town project had been 
reporting to the LSP since its start and fitted some if not all of the LSP 
priorities.  The Board’s criterion was to spend money on LSP priorities 
and make decisions on that basis. 
 
Members voted on the proposal and it was RESOLVED to set aside 
£15,000 funding for the project. 

   

 (d) Migration Impact Funding    

   
 Adam Jackson, Service Connector Manager, gave Partners and update 

on the three strands of the project. 
 
META 
This was going well and seeing consistent numbers with good client/staff 
relationships.  In the current financial climate the need for the service had 
increased.   
 

 

4



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 May 2011 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

 
One Stop Bus 
After a slow start the bus was now seeing increased demand since 
January 2011.  Clients had many different needs and were provided with 
one-to-one assistance.  Lots of information was available on the bus and 
representatives from Norfolk Credit Union and the Fire Safety Awareness 
Team had been on board.  It had been used in the Planning Consultation 
process and as a Polling Station in the recent elections.  There had been 
a lot of positive feedback.  The link with the BBC’s 1st Click campaign had 
been very valuable and the team had been invited to the National Digital 
Champions Celebration by the BBC. 
 
The bus had a full quota of bookings but funding was only available until 
June. 
 
Thetford Works! Project 
The work club for people out of work and those with barriers to work was 
proving successful.  40 clients had been helped since January and it was 
hoped to reach the target of 50 by the end of June 2011.   
 
Looking forward, there were a lot of opportunities to progress the projects.  
 
Neill Stott said this was an example of a plugged-in project with good 
Partnership working building on existing services.  A plan was needed to 
sustain the project.  It would be a shame to let it go because the external 
funding had run out.  There was a clear need for the services provided. 

   
19/11 PRIDE - STAFFING (AGENDA ITEM 8)   
  
 The Community Development Manager said that it would be a hard job to 

fill the boots of the Pride Co-ordinator.  Tthey wanted to maintain the 
momentum he had built up.  Richard’s secondment would start at the end of 
May, so a quick solution was required. 
 
He suggested that it was an opportunity to get the whole Communities 
Team working on the Pride project.  A plan would be presented to the next 
Board which would reduce replication and save money.  He asked for the 
Board’s support to recruit in that way. 
 
Although some concern was raised that the Communities Team was busy 
and there might be a resource issue, the Board supported the suggestion. 
 
The Community Development Manager would bring the plan to the next 
meeting for approval.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RL  
  
20/11 LEADERSHIP OF PLACE (AGENDA ITEM 12)   
  
 This item was moved up the agenda. 

 
The Partnership (LSP) Officer advised that the Leadership of Place scheme 
had already commenced.  It was a county wide project with RIEP funding 
but Breckland had developed a pilot for joint customer service provision in 
market towns utilising the One Stop Bus. 
 
Funding for the One Stop Bus under the Migration Impact Funding was 
coming to a close and the associated staff contracts ran until the end of 

 

5



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 May 2011 

 
 

6 

 Action By 

 
June.  In its present form the project was not sustainable although it was 
clearly plugging a gap as services were withdrawn locally and it had also 
received increased support from the BBC and a wide range of external 
partners. 
 
He proposed that the Migration Impact Funding (MIF) projects which 
already had £15,000 funding set aside, should be extended for  a further 
three months at a cost of circa £42,000.  The MIF projects would be joined 
together with the Leadership of Place project.  This would provide an 
opportunity to receive up to £35,000 funding, some of which might be lost if 
the MIF project was not extended, through the linking of the projects.  This 
in turn, would create greater partnership opportunities. 
 
Neill Stott asked what would happen after the three month extension and 
the Partnership (LSP) Officer explained that the Learning and Community 
fund would become available for bids then. 
 
It was RESOLVED: 
 

(1) to note [for information and planning purposes] the contents 
of this report; 

 
(2) to extend the pilot mobile Saturday presence office in 

Breckland market Towns to research Locality based services 
under the Improvement East “Leadership of Place” 
programme; 

 
(3) to maximise the drawing down of the £35k via Kings Lynn & 

West Norfolk Council on behalf of the Improvement East 
programme and set up a Breckland budget to expend that 
funding as an enhancement to the existing Breckland 
Partnership  “One Stop Bus”. (Subject to an approved 
business plan and the proposed future partnership initiatives 
meeting the terms of the funding). 

 
(4) To provide up to £15K funding from either the Migration 

Impact Funding ‘and if required’ the LSP funding resources 
to support the extension of the pilot project beyond 3 months 
and the associated Migration Impact Funding projects for a 
further 3 months covering the period July to end of 
September 2011.  

 
(5) To approach Breckland District Council for the remaining 

shortfall for funding if required. 
  
21/11 BUDGET (AGENDA ITEM 9)   
  
 The Partnership (LSP) Officer advised members that there was a balance 

of £152,068.41 in the budget less salary and on-costs and Pride funding for 
2011/12.   
 
The LSP income for 2011/12 was £95,854.  That would leave a total 
available budget of £152,922 (minus the £15,000 set aside for Thetford 
Healthy Town and some funding potentially for the MIF project). 
 

 

6



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
19 May 2011 

 
 

7 

 Action By 

 
The budget was in a healthy state and the Partnership (LSP) Officer would 
be trying to attract more funding if possible. 

  
22/11 ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (AGENDA ITEM 10)   
  
 The following items were suggested: 

 
§ Process for committing LSP resources 
§ Sustainability of the One Stop Bus service 
§ Pride options for the future 
§ Thetford Healthy Town update 
§ LSP Officer contract extension 

 
It was also noted that Breckland Library Service would like to attend to get 
the Board’s ideas on opening libraries for wider use. 

 

  
23/11 FUTURE MEETINGS (AGENDA ITEM 11)   
  
 The arrangements for the next meeting on 21 July 2011 were noted. 

  
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.55 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

7



 
 
 

BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEETING 
 

Report of Mark Stokes, Deputy Chief Executive, Breckland Council 
 

PRIDE IN BRECKLAND UPDATE 
 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report it to provide an update and overview of the Pride in 
Breckland campaign. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that the Breckland Partnership Board: 
 
2.1    Note the contents of the report. 

 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 The Pride in Breckland campaign is a key delivery vehicle for the Breckland 
Partnership (LSP) and is intended to act as the catalyst for a variety of community 
and partnership based projects or initiatives, which directly support Council priorities. 

 
3.1.2 The Breckland Partnership (LSP) launched the Pride in Breckland campaign in July 

2008.  The projects objective is to address the long and short term issues, which 
have a negative impact on community cohesion.  To this end the project has the 
following goals: 

 

• To improve the quality of life for all Breckland residents and to make the district 
an even nicer place to visit 

• To develop the respect and sense of ownership in the local area 

• To expand relationships between different sections of the community 

• To encourage the sense of pride in the district 

3.1.3    In its Business Plan for the financial years 2008/09 to 2010/11, Breckland Council 
made provision for Pride in Breckland.  The project was initially funded as part of the 

Council’s Area Based Grant with an allocation of £200,000 over a 3 year period. The 
project funding supports the appointment of a full time Project Coordinator 
role over the three year period at Grade 8 level; 

Year 1 08/09: £75,000 

Year 2 09/10: £75,000 

Year 3 10/11: £50,000 

 

On 2nd December 2010, The Breckland Partnership agreed to fund the extension of 

the Pride in Breckland Project for a further 12 months. Any remaining budget left 

over from Year 3 would be rolled over to support Year 4: 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6a

8



 

 

 

 

Year 4 11/12: £50,000 

 

Remaining budget 

2011/12 - £20,000 
 
3.2.1 Completed Projects 
 

Many projects and initiatives have been successfully delivered since the launch of 
Pride in Breckland in July 2008. The following projects are an example of what has 
been recently achieved. A list of all completed projects and initiatives can be found in 
Appendix A. 
 
Computer Club for beginners 
 
Through the Community Ranger scheme in partnership with Norfolk Fire and Rescue, 
volunteer Tom Lewis has carried out more than 300 home fire safety checks in the 
homes of vulnerable people in Breckland. For each home fire safety check that he 
completed, Tom received a £10 community gift voucher that he can donate to any 
local project. With more than £3000 collected, Tom asked Pride in Breckland to help 
him set up computer classes for beginners aimed at elderly people who want to get 
on-line. The courses started at Beeston Primary school in May and is due to be 
completed next week.   
 
It is hoped the courses will be rolled out across the district to offer this services to a 
wider range of the Breckland community.   
 
Hockering and North Tuddenham Community Clean Up 
 
Both Hockering and North Tuddenham residents have come together as a community 
to clear up areas of their village.  The clean up days are always popular in local 
villages and have encouraged many new and existing volunteers to make 
improvements to their local area.  More clear up days have been planned over the 
summer months and have continued to be a success.   

 
3.2.2 Future projects  
 

With the profile of Pride in Breckland continuing to rise, a variety of community based 
projects and initiatives will continue to be delivered to help achieve the goals of Pride. 
The following two projects are an example of what is currently planned. An entire list 
of future projects can be found in Appendix B. 

 
Friends of Watton/Carbrooke Memorials 
 
Following the success of the Heroes Welcome Campaign in Watton, Pride in 
Breckland has been asked for help in protecting the two war memorials positioned at 
the entrance of the Blenheim Grange estate in Carbrooke. A, Friends of the 
Watton/Carbrooke War Memorials group will now be set up encouraging local people 
to take ownership of the sites. This will be done through various mini initiatives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 9



 
 
 
 

3.2.3 Staffing 
 
At the previous meeting the LSP Board agreed that following the departure of the 
Pride Coordinator to a temporary secondment within the HR team at Breckland 
Council the role would be backfilled by utilising expertise within the Communities 
Team at Breckland. The intention of this is to widen the scope of the projects and 
broaden the reach to community groups throughout the district. This would also offer 
salary savings which will be retained for Pride projects. 
 
The recruitment process has been completed and the following temporary 
secondments are effective from 1 July 2011 for 6 months.  
 
Pride & Place Coordinator – Cat Lang 
Pride Partnerships Officer – Stefan Clifford 
 
The cost of these secondments and additional responsibilities for the 6 month period 
is £2100 plus on-costs of around 30% 
Richard Wills has continued to support Pride projects throughout this period of 
change so that all commitments were honoured. A handover meeting has taken place 
and work has begun to review and refresh the current project plan. A Pride Board 
meeting has also been planned for 11 August.  
 
Officers will report on progress and the development plan for Pride Projects at the 
next LSP Board meeting. 
 
 

 

10



BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEETING 
 

Healthy Towns & Communities Update 

 
1.         Purpose of Report 
 
1.1       The purpose of this report it to provide an update of the Healthy Towns and 
            Communities programme. 
 

 

2.         Recommendations 
            It is recommended that the Breckland Partnership Board: 
2.1       Note the contents of the report. 
 

 
3. Vision and Aims 
 
3.1. To create an environment which embeds healthy lifestyles into communities 

through the provision of education and skills training, and supports the creation of 
a “healthy culture”. 

 
3.1 To ensure that the successes and lessons learnt from the Thetford Healthy Town 

programme are replicated in the areas of greatest need to support the existing 
programmes operated by Public and Private organisations as well as the 3rd 
Sector.  

 

4. Funding 
 
4.1 Final piece of funding totalling £60,000 agreed by NHS Norfolk Public Health 

11.7.2011. This now enables HT&C team to take forward programme planning 
with immediate effect. 

 
4.2 Funding received from Breckland Partnership will be used for roll out of Healthy 

Town as follows: 
 

Dereham: £5,000 
Swaffham: £5,000 
Watton: £5,000 

 
4.3 Attleborough: Subject to separate match funding application through Breckland 

Council. Decision due Sept 2011. 
 
4.4 LSP funds will be used to promote new health related projects within 

communities. 
 
4.4 Management and administration costs will be covered by funding from NHS 

Norfolk Public Health. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6b

11



 
 
 
 
5. Locations 
 
5.1 Healthy Town & Communities team will work with Attleborough, Dereham, 

Swaffham and Watton. Swaffham was not originally chosen; however in view of 
funding now received it is possible to work with all market town within Breckland. 

 
5.2 Attleborough: Stakeholder meeting to be arranged. 
 
5.3 Dereham: Stakeholder meeting to be arranged 
 
5.4 Swaffham: Stakeholder meeting to be arranged 
 
5.5.1 Watton: Attended meeting organised by Jan Godfrey of Wayland Health 

partnership 
  
6. Children 
 
6.1 Mapping of services that promote healthy weight within Thetford, Dereham and 

Watton for 0-19 year olds and generating awareness of services and referral 
routes.  

12



 
 

BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
  

21 July 2011 
  

Report of Adam Jackson, Service Connector Manager, Breckland Council 
  

MIGRATION IMPACT FUNDING (MIF) 
  

1.    Purpose of Report 

1.1.1        To update LSP Board Members on the progress in delivering the Migration 
Impact Funding project and the planned future activities. 

  
1.1.2        To give an overview of the META project to date. 
  
1.1.3        To give an overview of the mobile vehicle project to date. 

  
1.1.4        Looking forward – developing both services. 
  
  

  

 2.     Recommendations 
  
It is recommended that the LSP Board: 

  
2.1.1        Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 
  
2.1.2        Consider partner’s commitment to the Migration Impact Funding project. 
  
2.1.3        Considering current financial circumstances look at ways your service can 

get its key messages and services to the heart of rural communities across 
Breckland using the bus. 

  
2.1.4 To let us know what services you provide and events that you attend that are 

appropriate for the service connector team to link up with and or attend. 
 
 

3.1     Background 

3.1.1       A successful application as previously disseminated and discussed was 
made to Go East and Communities and Local Government (CLG) and 
£220,000 was awarded in the first year (09/10) 
 

3.1.2       Following recruitment of the Service Connector team both the META service 
and Mobile One Stop bus services were launched in June 2010. 

 
3.2 Overview 
 
META Service: 

 
3.2.1 The META partnership continues to work well with both parties seeing 

benefits from the joint working relationship. 
 
3.2.2 Transaction levels remain consistent with the Breckland side of the 

partnership seeing on average 20 clients per day. 
 
3.2.3 Staff and customer relationships continue to work well with trust on both parts. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6c

13



 
 
3.2.4 Services delivered vary across a range of partnership services and beyond 

but in the main are Benefit, Tax and Housing orientated. 
 
3.2.5 A number of successes have come from the project including rehousing 

clients, helping clients back to their home countries and finding shelter for 
homeless clients. 

 
3.2.6 There continues to be a clear link between the Thetford Works! work club and 

META with many clients visiting both sites. 
 
3.2.7 Service Connectors have attended Job Centre and CAB interviews with 

clients.  
 
3.2.8 The Service Connectors attended the META open day held at the Abbey 

Neighbourhood centre, promoting other projects and services as well as 
dealing with enquiries. 
 

Mobile One Stop Bus: 
  
3.2.9    The bus has now entered its second year on the road having gained a three 

month contract extension.  
 
3.2.10    Transaction numbers continue to rise with 85 one on one lessons booked for 

July alone.  
 
3.2.11 Publicity continues in the form of press releases and articles in parish 

magazines and Breckland’s Voice magazine as well as publicity through 
partner and town websites and publications. 

 
3.2.12  The bus was recently booked by the University of the Third age (U3A) and 

delivered a day long classroom style training session which was received 
unanimously positive feedback from trainees, organisers and Cllr Turner. 

 
3.2.13 The bus and team attended the Thetford Jobs Fayre, seeing 40 visitors on 

board the bus. 
 
3.2.14 The bus and team are also now utilised on Saturdays visiting each of the 

market towns on a monthly schedule as part of the Leadership of place 
project, on average seeing 15 customers each week over a 4 hour period. 

 
3.2.15 Baseline and councillors have attended the Saturday town visits and Thetford 

Healthy Towns are also due to attend. 
 
3.2.16   Of those that completed feedback forms 100% of responses reported that 

the service provided and resolution of their enquiries was very good. 
 
Thetford Works! Project 

  
3.2.17 The MIF team are now working on the Thetford Works! Project on one day of 

each week, this involves planning and organising work clubs and helping 
clients with worklessness orientated issues. This project is in partnership with 
Keystone, Workwise and Flagship housing. 

 
3.2.18 Over 60 clients are now signed to the Work Club, the team working on CVs 

and identifying skill building sessions for them as well as interviews. 
 
3.2.19 The team have arranged and built a strong relationship with the Thetford 
 
 

14



 
 

 agency Seven Sisters, and have arranged many role interviews with them for 
clients. 

 
3.2.20 8 clients have now found employment as a direct result of the Connector 

team’s work. 
  

3.3       Looking forward 

  
3.3.1 The team are to be trained as Consumer Champions for Trading Standards; 

this service will then be promoted particularly in towns on Saturdays. 
 
3.3.2 Conversation is taking place to link up with the NHS as part of their vitamin 

giving project for those that are on benefits, again this will form part of the 
Saturday town visit work. 

 
3.3.3 The team are to receive training as digital champions in order to advise and 

assist customers through the digital television and radio switchover. 
 
3.3.4 Following a successful appointment with U3A at the end of June a further 

group are being booked for the end of July. 
 
3.3.5 In the very near future the META service is moving to the Abbey Estate which 

offers more space and confidentiality for both clients and officers. The 
relationship between the existing British community and the META clients will 
need to be closely monitored but with some work it is felt that this could be a 
stepping stone towards linking the two communities. 

 
3.3.6 A high percentage of non Breckland META based enquiries relate to the Job 

Centre, the team have been met with several obstacles whilst liaising with the 
Job Centre which causes them and their client’s serious problems. This 
relationship needs to be explored and improved. 

 
3.3.7 Consideration is being given regarding the lifespan of the project and options 

post 30 September 2011. 
  

4.1  Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

  
4.1.1    The project has the potential to involve a broad spectrum of partners from the 

public, private and voluntary and community sector which should be 
encouraged. 

 
4.1.2      The project is flexible in its approach and therefore can be modified in order 

to deliver a wide range of partnership functions such as consultation, training 
and skills, engagement, accessibility, develop social cohesion and in order to 
better understand the diverse communities we serve. 

 
4.1.3      The rural and migrant communities represent a large proportion of our 

customer base that the Breckland Partnership needs to engage effectively 
with and to deliver according to their individual needs. 

 
4.1.4      In order for the project and its services to continue to be developed and 

delivered it must be sustainable. Bringing in other key partners who have a 
need to engage with rural and migrant communities with relatively small cost 
through these outlets is a suitable solution for all. 

 

15



 
 
 
 

BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

12 July 2011 
 

Report of Neil Stott, Chief Executive, Keystone Development Trust 
 

Helping Those Furthest from Employment: Keystone Work Clubs  
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1  To update the LSP Board Members on the Keystone Approach, an innovative and 
very effective initiative designed to support those ‘furthest from employment’. 

 
1.2 To propose the Breckland Partnership provides funding for 3 Work Clubs from August 

2011 to March 2012. 
 

 

2. Recommendations 
 
 It is recommended that the LSP Board: 
 

2.1 Agree to support 3 Keystone Work Clubs; 2 in Thetford and 1 in Attleborough. 

 

 

3. Background 

 
3.1 Keystone has initiated a cluster of projects designed to support people who are not in 

employment and who need intensive assistance to improve skills, confidence and 
overcome barriers such as health issues, debt or childcare.  

 
3.2 We focus in particular on helping people at the margins of society who appear to 

many agencies as the ‘hardest to reach’, who have fallen through cracks of formal 
support structures, who live in the poorest communities, and who feel they have been 
abandoned. 

 
3.3 We have developed a distinctive and innovative methodology for supporting this 

group of people into employment, which we have called the Keystone Approach. This 
approach has proved very effective at improving the lives of this group of 
unemployed people. 

 
3.4 The Work Clubs are a core element of the Keystone Approach. Keystone presently 

runs an adult Work Club in Thetford. We also run a school leaver’s Work Club in 
Mildenhall, which we deliver for Suffolk Country Council.  

 
3.5 Funding for the adult Work Club is limited. There is clearly significant demand for the 

service, and we are looking for new ways of continuing and extending existing 
provision. 

 

4.  Issues 

4.1  Unemployment in Breckland 

4.1.1  Many communities in the East of England, including Breckland, are characterized by 
pockets of persistently high levels of unemployment. The problem has worsened in 
recent years as economic circumstances have deteriorated. 

 

Agenda Item 8

16



 

 

4.1.2 Conventional approaches and policy initiatives designed to support unemployed 
people have proved inadequate in helping those who are hardest to reach: the long-
term unemployed as well as young people who have grown up in what might be 
described as a ‘culture of worklessness’. 

4.1.3 Many feel trapped and let down by a system that offers generic solutions to what are 
very often individual-specific problems related to, for example, confidence, self-
esteem, or health issues. 

4.2 The Keystone Work Clubs 
 
4.2.1 The Keystone Work Clubs were launched in November 2010 with funding from the 

Housing Action Charity (HACT). 
  
4.2.2 The Work Clubs are structured around the following activities: (1) spending time with 

clients in order to build a relationship with them based on trust, (2) exploring clients’ 
aspirations and expectations for the future, (3) identifying the main barriers to 
employment, (4) providing information about pathways to employment as well as 
practical support and work-related skills, (5) and working with employers to match 
clients with positions and build professional networks. 

 
4.2.3  In a practical sense, the Work Clubs involve tailoring particular support packages for 

each person in order to help them make the transition into employment. In addition to 
face-to-face meetings, we rely heavily on SMS, email, and social media such as 
Facebook to keep in touch and to offer additional encouragement and advice. 

 
4.2.3 The adult Work Club operates in partnership with Breckland Council: Sarah Westrup 

and Helene Birch work with us one day a week to support the Work Club on the 
Abbey estate and also on the Poultec bus offering mobile support in neighbouring 
towns and villages. The two projects provide excellent synergy, allowing local people 
to access advice, support, training and information about Council services as well as 
advice, support, training and information about employment in the same location. 

 
4.2.4 As well as the Work Clubs, Keystone was awarded match funding from HACT for 

Volunteer to Work, a ‘next stop’ project which combines support with practical 
training and an emphasis on building work-related competencies such as 
timekeeping, teamwork and organizational skills. In addition, SCC has commissioned 
Keystone to deliver a project designed to raise the aspirations of young people in 
Brandon, and to be the accountable body for the delivery of a Suffolk-wide project to 
run Work Clubs in 11 schools. 

 
4.3 The Effectiveness of the Keystone Work Clubs 
 
4.3.1 At our adult Work Club we have worked with 67 clients. We have helped 7 of these 

clients move into employment, and a further 10 have taken on volunteering 
opportunities. Given the budget we are working with and the background of our 
clients, this represents a remarkable return. 

 
4.3.2 The Keystone Approach is resource-intensive by necessity; with our clients quick 

solutions are not always immediately forthcoming. While for some the Keystone 
Approach does lead directly to a job or a volunteer placement, we measure our 
effectiveness more broadly. We consider that we have been successful if we remove 
barriers to employment and increase aspirations. We also consider that we have 
been successful if we increase clients’ skills and competencies, or build their 
confidence so that they feel able to apply for positions, attend interviews, and cope 
with setbacks. Equally, an improvement in self-esteem or an improved ability to 
engage with others may be an important outcome of our approach.  

 
 
 
 
 

17



 
 
 
 
4.3.3 Our success is rooted in three simple principles. First, we consider our clients as 

individuals with distinct aspirations and expectations, who require tailored solutions. 
Second, we think about people at the margins as resources to be developed rather 
than problems to be solved. Third, we take the time to build trusting relationships that 
are underpinned by positive reinforcement rather than threats or sanctions. 

 
4.4 The Proposal 
 
4.4.1 This report recommends that the Partnership supports the funding of three Work 

Clubs.  
 
4.4.2 It is proposed that two of the Work Clubs take place in Thetford (one in the Abbey 

Estate and a second in the St John’s Estate).  
 
4.4.3 It is further proposed that a third Work Club be set up in Attleborough where there 

appears to be significant demand for our services. Indeed, four of our clients at the 
existing Thetford Work Club travel from Attleborough.  

5. Options 

 

5.1  To ‘support’ the recommendations of this report by funding 3 Keystone Work Clubs, 2 
in Thetford and 1 in Attleborough. 

5.2  To ‘not support’ the recommendations put forward in this report by offering no funding 
for any Keystone Work Clubs. 

5.3.  To ‘part support’ the recommendations put forward in this report by funding of 1 or 2 
Keystone Work Clubs. 

6. Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

6.1  The demand for innovative approaches to helping those furthest from the labour 
market build work-related skills and competencies is growing, as is the number of 
clients requiring assistance in challenging economic circumstances. 

6.2  Keystone has established expertise in, and a track record of, helping those furthest 
from employment. Funding 3 Work Clubs will allow Keystone to reach a wider group 
of people who urgently need support. 

6.3  Keystone is keen to work with partners and potential funders to deliver Work Clubs in 
order to maximize our impact and enable as many clients as possible to benefit from 
our approach. 

 

 

18



1

Supporting those Furthest From the Labour Market: The Keystone Approach

Amanda Patterson

Keystone Development Trust

Neil Stott

Keystone Development Trust

Paul Tracey

Keystone Development Trust

and Cambridge University

19



2

The Keystone Approach

At Keystone we specialise in helping those furthest from the labour market to move into

employment or training. We focus in particular on supporting people at the margins of society

who appear to many agencies as the ‘hardest to reach’, who have fallen through cracks of

formal support structures, who live in the poorest communities, and who feel they have been

abandoned.
1
The approach that we have developed has proved very effective at improving the

lives of this group of unemployed people. There is no mystery to what we do. Our success is

rooted in three simple principles. First, we consider our clients as individuals with distinct

aspirations and expectations, who require tailored solutions. Second, we think about people at

the margins as resources to be developed rather than problems to be solved. Third, we take the

time to build trusting relationships that are underpinned by positive reinforcement rather than

threats or sanctions. The aim of this document is to outline the essence of the Keystone

Approach, which is delivered through our adult and school leaver Work Clubs and Volunteer to

Work project.

Theoretical Background

The employment opportunities available to people depend not only on their skills, personal

traits, and capabilities, but also the social context in which they grow up.
2
In this respect, the

process of vocational socialization is critical to individual career trajectories. This is the process

whereby people learn about the opportunities, norms and expectations associated with

employment.
3
There are five main sources of influence on the way that people are socialized:

their family, the educational institutions they attend, their friends and peers, the media they

are exposed to, and their work experience.

1
Keystone Development Trust and Flagship Housing Group. 2009. West Thetford 2020 Community Consultation.

2
Jablin, F.M. 2001. Organizational entry, assimilation and disengagement/exit. In F.M. Jablin and L.L. Putnam

(eds.). The New Handbook of Organizational Communication: Advances in Theory, Research and Methods.

Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage: 732 818.
3
Jablin, F.M. 1985. Task/work relationships: A life span perspective. In M.L. Knapp and G.R. Miller (eds.).

Handbook of Interpersonal Communication. Beverly Hills, CA: Sage: 615 654

20



3

Many of the clients that Keystone supports have been out of work for a long time. Some of our

younger clients have never worked. They often belong to families that contain few working

adults and have friendship networks that consist mainly of people who, like them, are not in

employment, education or training. As a result, many have a limited understanding of the world

of work. In other words, they have been socialized into a set of norms and values which impede

entry to the labour market. One of Keystone’s objectives is to alter these norms and values so

that clients have a better chance not only of finding meaningful employment, but also of

thriving once they find a position.

A significant body of practitioner and academic research has emerged in recent years that

examines how people can be supported in a constructive way to develop their potential. This

body of work marks a break from conventional thinking which has tended to consider those at

the margins of society as problems to be managed rather than resources to be cultivated.
4
One

of the most well known models within this new body of work tradition is the “Five Cs”

framework.
5
While the 5Cs model was originally designed as an approach to help young people,

it is equally applicable to adults. Taken together, the five components of the model –

competence, confidence, connection, character, caring – encompass a range of psychological,

behavioural and social characteristics which underpin the effective development of people.

The “5Cs” of Positive Development

“C” Definition

Competence: Positive view of one’s actions in specific areas, including social, academic,

cognitive, health, and vocational. Social competence refers to interpersonal

skills (such as conflict resolution). Cognitive competence refers to cognitive

abilities (e.g., decision making). Academic competence refers to school

performance as shown, in part, by school grades, attendance, and test scores.

Health competence involves using nutrition, exercise, and rest to keep

oneself fit. Vocational competence involves work habits and explorations of

4
Kerner, R.M., Almerigi, J.B., Theokas, C. and Lerner, J.V. 2005. Positive Youth Development: A view of the issues.

Journal of Early Adolescence, 25: 10 16.
5
Zarrett, N. and Lerner, R.M. 2008. Ways to promote the positive development of children and youth. Child

Trends, publication 2008 11.

21



4

career choices.

Confidence: An internal sense of overall positive self worth and self efficacy.

Connection: Positive bonds with people and institutions that are reflected in exchanges

between the individual and his or her peers, family, school, and community in

which both parties contribute to the relationship.

Character: Respect for societal and cultural norms, possession of standards for correct

behaviors, a sense of right and wrong (morality), and integrity.

Caring/Compassion: A sense of sympathy and empathy for others.

The Keystone Approach is designed to support clients’ development through the promotion of

each dimension of the 5Cs framework. Specifically, the approach involves a series of steps

which provide a pathway to building resilience and work related skills and competencies. A

particular strength of the 5Cs framework is that it encourages those supporting unemployed

people to consider them as individuals with distinct needs, abilities, motivations and barriers to

employment. In other words, it encourages a person centric philosophy, which is at the heart of

the Keystone Approach.

In a practical sense, the Keystone Approach involves tailoring particular support packages for

each person rather than creating generic offerings. At the same time, our framework

acknowledges that people are embedded in a given social context and that many of the

problems they face, as well as the solutions to these problems, are rooted in that context. The

Keystone Approach is delivered through our Work Clubs, which usually take place once per

week in our community centre, as well as our Volunteer to Work Project, a ‘next stop’ which

combines support with practical training and an emphasis on building work related

competencies such as timekeeping, teamwork and organizational skills. In addition to face to

face meetings, we rely heavily on SMS, email, and social media such as Facebook to keep in

touch and to offer additional encouragement and advice. The approach is described in a series

of steps below and illustrated in Appendix 1.

22



5

Core Elements of the Keystone Approach

Step 1: Build Relationships and Trust

The Keystone Approach is underpinned by a relationship of trust between our project workers

and our clients. Indeed, our approach depends fundamentally on such relationships being

established. We meet with our clients in relaxed and familiar settings, normally our Community

Centre, but sometimes, particularly for our younger clients, in places that are convenient for

them. We always try to put our clients at ease, especially in the early stages. We emphasize

that all the information they provide is strictly confidential, that we have no formal links to

benefits agencies, that the work clubs are voluntary, and that there are no sanctions for not

attending (clients must not feel that they are being forced to join, otherwise it is very difficult to

set our relationships with them on solid foundations). Building trust clearly takes time, and in

this regard the approach can be resource intensive. However, our experience suggests that

time spent fostering such relationships is crucial. While a particular emphasis on trust building

occurs very early on, it is part of an on going process that takes place throughout the time that

we work with our clients.

Step 2: Explore Aspirations and Expectations

We spend a lot of time discussing clients’ ambitions for the future. We look in particular at their

aspirations (their “ability to set goals for the future, while being inspired during the present to

work towards those goals”
6
) with aim of exploring career options and developing career paths

that will provide long term fulfilment. In addition to aspirations, we also explore carefully our

clients’ expectations of employment, their self esteem, and their belief in their own abilities:

for some a significant impediment to their entry into employment or training is not, or not only,

that they have limited ambitions for the future, but that they have low expectations about what

they can realistically achieve. This means that as well as a focus on aspirations, our efforts to

6
Quaglia, R.J. and Cobb, C.D. 1996. Toward a theory of student aspirations. Journal of Research in Rural

Education, 12, 127 132.

23



6

improve the employment prospects of people at the margins of the labour market seek to

address their expectations about what they are capable of becoming.
7

Step 3: Identify the Main Barriers to Employment

Conventional approaches to getting people into work tend to assume that the main barriers to

a person finding work are motivational and attitudinal. In other words, the assumption is often

that the long term unemployed are lazy, incompetent, or both. At Keystone we take a very

different tack. Indeed, our experience suggests that the reasons why people are unable to find

a job are many and varied. We spend a lot of time with clients exploring their barriers to

employment, and developing strategies for overcoming them. The most common barriers that

our clients experience include limited access to childcare, poor transport links, poor housing,

low skills, and issues with physical and emotional well being. Sometimes the barriers are

relatively straightforward to break down and we can develop simple solutions. In other cases,

however, addressing the barriers is more complex, and we engage with partner organizations

to provide appropriate support within the work clubs or refer clients to other sources of help.

Step 4: Provide Information about Pathways to Employment, and Practical Support and Work related

Skills

Unemployed people often have difficultly accessing information not just about employment

opportunities, but also about pathways to employment (i.e. the skills and training that are

needed to enter a particular occupation). These problems are especially acute for people who

do not have established networks on which draw; as noted below, colleagues, friends, relatives

and other contacts represent important sources of information about employment

opportunities.
8
In the absence of such networks, we provide clients with clear and

comprehensive information about the range of training and educational options available. The

advice that we offer in this respect, as well as the formal sources of information that we direct

7
Bartley, M. 2007. Capability and Resilience: Beating the Odds. Swindon: Economic and Social Research Council

8
O’Regan, K.M. and Quigley, J.M. Teenage employment and the spatial isolation of minority and poverty

households. The Journal of Human Resources, 31(3): 692 702.

24



7

clients to, constitute a critical resource and an important mechanism for raising clients’

awareness about their options and possibilities.

Most clients appreciate our support in providing, reaffirming or enhancing practical skills such

as composing a CV, job searching, and giving presentations. We also provide volunteering

opportunities, place clients with other community groups, and where possible provide work

opportunities in our social enterprises. Time spent with clients is crucial in order to build their

confidence and resilience, as is being available if work is not immediately forthcoming. We also

support clients in tackling other issues which impact on their ability to secure work such as

isolation, lack of self esteem, problems with debt, and health issues. Again, we offer this

support in conjunction with our partners.

Step 5: Work with Employers to Match Clients with Positions and Support the Creation of

Professional Networks

A final, but critical, step in our approach involves working with employers. By learning about

the vacancies that employers have available, and the sorts of candidates they are looking for,

we seek to match clients and positions. We also ask employers to visit the work clubs to talk

about the opportunities they have available and to answer questions from our clients. In

addition, we invite employees from local organizations, who have been in similar situations to

our clients, in order to provide informal mentorship and act as role models. We have found that

this can help self esteem and raise both aspirations about the future and expectations about

what clients can achieve.
9
More broadly, positive role models can help develop the key senses

“of belonging, of mattering, of counting” that underpin the positive development of people.
10

By connecting clients, employers and local employees, we start to build clients’ networks.

9
Jekielek, S.M., Moore, K.A., Hair, E.C. and Scarupa, H.J. 2002. Mentoring: A promising strategy for youth

development. Child Trends Research Brief. www.childtrends.org.
10
Gilligan, R. 2000. Adversity, resilience and young people: The protective value of positive school and spare time

experiences. Children and Society, 14: 37 47.

25



8

Much recent research on unemployment has focused on the role of networks in expanding

horizons and work opportunities.
11
These networks are critical because they are a key source of

information about employment. In addition to information about specific openings, networks

provide informal information about, for example, the sorts of skills needed in a given job and

the expectations of a particular employer.
12
While, as noted above, we seek to provide formal

mechanisms that people can use to learn about employment opportunities, research suggests

that these are often less effective than informal networks. Professional networks are especially

important because they can help people gain insights into a particular career path, secure work

experience, serve as a source of inspiration, and ultimately provide them with employment

opportunities. Yet these are the kind of networks that the long term unemployed are most

likely to be excluded from. The final step in the Keystone Approach is designed to address this

issue.

How Do We Know the Keystone Approach Works?

The Keystone Approach is resource intensive by necessity; with our clients quick solutions are

not always immediately forthcoming. If the measure of success is an instant entry or re entry to

the labour market, then the Keystone Approach falls short. While, for some of our clients, the

Keystone Approach does lead directly to a job or a volunteer placement, we measure our

effectiveness more broadly. We consider that we have been successful if we remove barriers to

employment and increase aspirations. We also consider that we have been successful if we

increase clients’ skills and competencies, or build their confidence so that they feel able to

apply for positions, attend interviews, and cope with setbacks. Equally, an improvement in self

esteem or an improved ability to engage with others may be an important outcome of our

approach. To gauge the effectiveness of our work we conduct ‘exit’ interviews with clients so

that we can document their journey and the progress they have made. We also keep records of

11
Green, A. and White, W. 2007. Attachment to place, social networks, mobility and prospects for young people.

Joseph Rowntree Foundation.
12
O’Regan, K.M. 1993. The effect of social networks and concentrated poverty on black and Hispanic youth

unemployment. The Annals of Regional Science, 27: 327 342.

26



9

the support provided, training undertaken, volunteer placements, and jobs applied for and

secured.

Next Steps

The demand for innovative approaches to helping those furthest from the labour market build

work related skills and competencies is growing, as is the number of clients requiring assistance

in challenging economic circumstances. Keystone is keen to work with partners and potential

funders to deliver Work Clubs and Volunteer to Work initiatives, and to create job opportunities

through our social enterprises in order to maximize our impact and enable as many clients as

possible to benefit from our approach.

27



1
0

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
1
:
T
h
e
K
e
y
st
o
n
e
A
p
p
ro
a
ch

S
te
p
1
:
B
u
il
d
R
e
la
ti
o
n
sh
ip
s
a
n
d
T
ru
st

S
te
p
2
:

E
xp
lo
re

A
sp
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d

E
xp
e
ct
a
ti
o
n
s

S
te
p
3
:

Id
e
n
ti
fy
th
e

M
a
in
B
a
rr
ie
rs

to
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t

S
te
p
4
:

P
ro
v
id
e

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

a
b
o
u
t

P
a
th
w
a
y
s
to

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,

a
n
d
P
ra
ct
ic
a
l

S
u
p
p
o
rt
a
n
d

W
o
rk

re
la
te
d

S
k
il
ls

S
te
p
5
:

W
o
rk

w
it
h

E
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
to

M
a
tc
h
C
li
e
n
ts

w
it
h
P
o
si
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d
S
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e
C
re
a
ti
o
n
o
f

N
e
tw

o
rk
s

P
e
o
p
le
H
a
rd
e
st

to
R
e
a
ch

w
h
o

a
re

n
o
t
in

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,

E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
o
r

T
ra
in
in
g

T
ra
n
si
ti
o
n
in
to

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,

E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
o
r

T
ra
in
in
g

28



Keystone Work Club projected budget: 

Breckland LSP 

August 2011 – March 2012 

 

 
Amount: 
 

 
Required for: 

 
Notes: 

£9000 Staff costs 15 hours a week Project Leader, CEO, work club 
trainer, training & project management 

£500 Training Staff and volunteer training to deliver sessions 

£600 Travel  Minimal due to local area working 

£500 Materials Including printing, stationary, etc 

£500 Volunteer expenses Travel only 

£1,900 Office costs Desk space, telephone, internet, etc 

£500 Signposting Local job events and other related drop in’s 

£600 Events Regular work club drop in event each month 

£300 Venue costs For related training and events 

£150 Postal costs Mail shots for events and work clubs 

£250 Promotional activity Regular adverts in local newsletters 

£200 Refreshments For drop in sessions 

 
£15,000 
 

  
 

 

29



 
 
 

BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

21 July 2011 
 

Report of Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer, Breckland Council 
 

PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING (PB) 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1.1 To update LSP Board members on the delivery of the Participatory Budgeting project 
entitled ‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ - Year 2. 

 
1.1.2 To stimulate discussion on the merits of delivering a further round of Participatory 

Budgeting, in order to build on the achievements and the delivery to date. 
 

 

2.     Recommendations 
 

                It is recommended that the LSP Board: 

2.1.1 Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 
 

2.1.2 Further publicity is provided to the successful projects that were funded through 
utilising a broad range of media and supporting those that were not funded. 

 
2.1.3 The Breckland Partnership undertakes a further ‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ 

project within the district that draws on the experience of the previous two projects. 
(Subject to partners coming forward to offer their commitment through either a joint 
initiative, match funding or offering resources in-kind). 

 
2.1.4 To allocate an amount of funding circa £10-15k in order to attract a partner funder to 

deliver another round of ‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ within Breckland. 
 

 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1   Following on from the highly successful ‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ participatory 
budgeting project delivered in 2009/10, agreement was reached to replicate the model. 

3.1.2   At the October 7th 2010 Board meeting it was agreed to approve £11,666 match 
funding for the PB process, subject to there being an equal focus on creating Stronger 
Communities together with the Safer priority as per the Breckland Sustainable 
Community Strategy. 

3.1.3   The decision taken by the Breckland Partnership to match fund the year 2 PB project, 
together with an outline of the proposed delivery was taken to the Partnership and 
Tasking Coordination Group (PTCG) on 9th November 2010. 

3.1.4 A decision was taken at the meeting to add a further £10,000 capital funding to the 
project in order to increase the availability of funding in each Breckland 
Neighbourhood.  

3.1.5 The additional funding provided allowed a total of £30,000 to be available for projects 
across the Breckland District. 

3.1.6 Broken down into the 5 areas it provided £6,000 (£4k capital & £2k revenue) to be 
available for community projects that meet the priorities of creating ‘Stronger and 
Safer’ communities. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

30



 

 

 

3.2       Issues 

Delivery 
 
3.2.1 A coordinator (lead) was set up in each of the 5 areas to act as the key contact for the 

applicants, set up local delivery models and to organise other community             
representatives as required.  
 

3.2.2 A community representative’s panel including Police, local ward members, business, 
faith groups and area partnerships was set up in each area to oversee the delivery and 
to ensure fair representation and to provide a range of skills and contacts. 
 

3.2.3 A broad range of publicity including press releases, distribution to contact lists, 
Breckland Council’s website, Voice magazine, the One Stop Bus and posters at key 
locations across the district was used to promote the availability of the funding. 

 
3.2.4 The applications were received steadily and there was more interest generated in the 

final week, this in part was assisted by the availability of an online application form 
available on the Breckland Council website. 

 
Area Methods 
 
Attleborough: 
 
3.2.5 The Attleborough area shortlisted down from 13 to 6 projects and then conducted a 

street poll in Attleborough Town Centre on over 100 people without stating where the 
project will take place to avoid bias towards a particular location.  

 
3.2.6 The results of the survey together with the input from the panel determined which 

projects were rewarded either more funding than requested, the amount requested or 
part-funded.  

 
3.2.7 The 6 shortlisted projects were invited to make a presentation in a Town centre public 

house to the other applicants before announcing the results and the funding awarded. 
 
3.2.8 It was felt by the panel this year that they wished all those attending the decision 

evening to be awarded funding to avoid disappointment and to make it positive. 
 
Dereham: 
 
3.2.9 The Dereham area shortlisted down from 19 to 8 projects and then held a presentation 

evening in the Anglia Room, Breckland Council Offices. 
 
3.2.10 The shortlisted projects were drawn to decide the running order and each made up to 

a 4 minute presentation (without power point) to the panel with the other applicants as 
the audience. 

 
3.2.11 The panel were then able to ask the presenters any questions in relation to the 

proposed project in order to further assess the merits of each project. 
 
3.2.12 The panel then convened outside of the presentation room to debate which projects 

should be funded and the amounts awarded. The Chair then summarised the 
feedback on each project, before announcing their respective funding. 

 
Swaffham: 
 
3.2.13 The Swaffham area shortlisted down from 16 to 11 projects and then held a 

presentation evening in the Assembly Rooms, Swaffham. 
 
 
 
 

31



 
 
 
 
3.2.14 The shortlisted projects were allocated a running order and each made up to a 2 

minute presentation (without power point) to the other applicants as the audience. 
 
3.2.15 Once all the presentations were made, each group was provided with a voting form 

and asked to allocate 3 votes to the most worthy projects in their opinion. 
 
3.2.16 The votes were then anonymously read aloud and inputted into a chart in full view of 

the audience. The funding was allocated to the projects receiving the highest number 
of votes until the funding was exhausted. 

 
Thetford: 
 
3.2.17 The Thetford area shortlisted down from 23 to 12 projects and then held a 

presentation evening in the Guildhall, Thetford. 
 
 
3.2.18 The shortlisted projects were allocated a running order and split into either Thetford 

based or outside of Thetford based projects in order to minimise bias towards locations 
(town and rural).  

 
3.2.19 Each of the shortlisted projects made up to a 3 minute presentation with allowance for 

1 or 2 questions covering 2 minutes (without power point) to the other applicants as 
the audience. 

 
3.2.20 All residents who live in Thetford and the surrounding Parishes were invited to vote for 

2 projects within each group to ensure that Town and rural projects received funding. 
 
Watton: 
 
3.2.21 The Watton area shortlisted down from 23 to 16 projects and then held a presentation 

evening in the Queen’s Hall, Watton. 
 
3.2.22 The shortlisted projects were allocated a running order and were allowed to make up 

to a 5 min presentation.  
 
3.2.23 Upon completion of all the presentations the audience consisting of other project 

applicants and the wider community were encouraged to vote according to the most 
deserving 5 projects and to allocate points on a sliding scale. 

 
3.2.24 Due to the high number of attendees (125) there was insufficient time to count all the 

votes cast therefore it was announced that confirmation of the results would be 
announced the following day. 

 
Results 

 
3.2.25 The table below shows the figures within the respective areas together with the totals: 

(figures in brackets represent the difference compared to the year 1 PB project):  
 

Area Applications 
Received 

Shortlisted 
Projects 

Funded 
Projects 

Attendance / 
Voters 

Attleborough 13 (0) 6  6 (0) 20 (-5) 

Dereham 19 (+3) 8  7 (-1) 22 (+2) 

Swaffham 16 (-18) 11  7 (-7) 25 (-35) 

Thetford 23 (+10) 12  5 (-7) 85 (+80) 

Watton 23 (+11) 16 5 (-4)  125 (+75) 

Totals 94  (+6) 53 (-14) 30 (-19) 277 (+117) 
 
 

32



 
 
 
 
3.2.26 It can be clearly seen that there was an increase of 6 applications compared to the 

previous year, with a more even spread across the areas compared to the previous 
year with three areas (Dereham, Thetford, Watton) increasing the numbers of 
applications they received. 

 
3.2.27 There was a significant increase of 42% of people (117) involved in the decision 

making evenings due to the ‘open invite’ to the wider public in both Thetford and 
Watton. If the project is repeated consideration and encouragement should be given to 
the roll-out of this format. 
 

3.2.28 Evaluating the Participatory Budgeting process and the projects will be carried out to 
capture the outcomes of the projects funded at 6 and 12 Month intervals. 

 
3.2.29 To date £25,559 has been released to the projects awarded funding through the 

project which represents 27 of the 30 projects in receipt of their funding. 
 
3.2.30 Further publicity of the projects and the evidence of the outcomes will be collated and 

be available on the website. 
 
3.3  Options 
 
3.3.1 To note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report 
 
3.3.2 To agree / disagree to scope the undertaking of a further round of ‘Your Partnership 

Your Decision’ in the Breckland district. 
 
3.3.3 To agree / disagree to allocate provisional funding to a future project. 
 

3.4     Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

 
3.4.1 The ‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ – Year 2 has built on the success of the County 

wide PB initiative delivered by Norfolk County Council in 2009/10 and the locally 
delivered PB projects by the Breckland Partnership. 

 
3.4.2 The funding awarded to the 30 Area Based community projects offers an opportunity to 

support them further by providing a supportive media platform. In order to highlight the 
dedication they demonstrate to their local community and to improve their opportunities 
to develop further and become more sustainable. 

 
3.4.3 The learning and the experiences gained by the partners, Councillors and communities 

involved in the delivery of the project will be able to be exploited for the benefit of the 
potential follow on project. 

 
3.4.4 A further ‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ project will offer a valuable opportunity to 

consult the community on their priorities. 
 
3.4.5 The project will enhance participation in local democracy and improve community 

cohesion whilst supporting local community focussed projects. 

 

 

33


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6a Pride in Breckland Project
	6b Thetford Healthy Town
	6c Migration Impact Funding
	8 Thetford Works!
	The Keystone Approach June 2
	LSP projected budget

	9 Participatory Budgeting

